
 

South Haven City Hall is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed 
materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to 
the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the City Clerk by writing or 
calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0700. 

 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
Thursday, March 5, 2015 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 
4. Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2015 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearing 

 
Joe Wiltgen is requesting a special use permit to construct a planned shopping center on 
his property at 330 Blue Star Highway. The special use permit is necessary because the 
applicant intends to construct a single building with more than two (2) individual 
commercial units. 

 
7. Site Plan Review 
 

Joe Wiltgen is seeking site plan approval for a new commercial building proposed for 330 
Blue Star Highway.  
 

8. Commissioner Comments 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 1 of 21



 

 1 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, January 15, 2015 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

       
 
1. Call to Order by Paull at 7:00 p. m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present:  Heinig, Miles, Smith, Wall, Webb, Paull 
Absent:   Frost, Peterson, Stimson 
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Smith to excuse Frost, Peterson and Stimson.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 

Motion by Wall second by Heinig to approve the January 8, 2015 regular meeting agenda as 
presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – November 13, 2014 
 

Motion by Heinig, second by Wall to approve the November 13, 2014 regular meeting 
minutes as corrected. 
 
Page 3, Paragraph 3: 
 

 Line 2: After the word circumstances add “How can we use this information?” 
 Line 3: Replace the word Logarithm with “logarithmic formula.” 
 Lines 4 and 6: Replace the word logarithm with “formula.” 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There were none. 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 2 of 21



January 15, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 
 

 2 

 
6. New Business - Public Hearing 

 
Webb Architects, representing O’Reilly Auto Parts of Springfield, MO, is requesting 
a special use permit in order to provide parking spaces over that which is required 
for their new store to be located at 369 Blue Star Highway. Zoning Ordinance 
Section 2406-6 requires 22 spaces for the store and the applicant is seeking to 
construct 35 spaces. The special use permit is required in Zoning Ordinance 
Section 2403-b. 
 
Motion by Miles, second by Smith to open the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Anderson explained the regulation concerning the overlay corridor that requires a special 
use permit if people want to have more parking spaces than permitted. We decreased the 
parking required in the overlay from one (1) space per 150 square feet to 200 square 
feet. Parking spaces required under the overlay zone is actually seventeen (17). They’re 
required to have seventeen (17) for the size store and they are proposing thirty-five (35). 
If not in overlay they would be required to have twenty-two (22) spaces minimum. One 
thing to consider, according to Anderson is if you look at the plan that shows their traffic 
maneuvering through the site, it goes over a couple of the parking spaces. Anderson 
noted that she asked the applicant about this; they explained that their deliveries are 
usually made in the night. Anderson’s concern is that, in the future, if a different business 
goes in there that does not get their deliveries at night that could be a problem. Anderson 
added that the city does hope that O’Reilly will stay a very long time. With the request 
they still have eight (8) spaces more than they need to comply with the ordinance, but 
without the special use permit they would not be able to get their trucks in for deliveries. 
Anderson pointed out that they have planned a lot of landscaping along the front, which 
will break up that parking area very nicely. This is a compact store and a fairly compact 
parking area and, with the addition of the catch basins and extra landscaping, it does cut 
down on the usable lot area. 
 
Aaron Hargrave, Civil Engineering: Regarding the special use, we submitted the traffic 
study. With the parking, O’Reilly’s delivers to mechanics in the area, so we have spots in 
the parking area for those delivery vehicles. The parking area is broken up by the 
landscaping; we feel it is not a crazy request and history shows O’Reilly’s can use the 
parking. 
 
Smith: on page fifty-one (51) there is an electrical question regarding a guy-wire. 
Anderson stated that has been addressed. 
 
Smith thanked O’Reilly’s for improving this lot. There is a lot of elevation, I can look at the 
site plans and not really know. . .  Anderson noted this is the special use request. Smith 
should wait for the site plan review to ask questions unrelated to the special use request. 
 
Terry Taylor introduced himself and his dad, Don Taylor, who owns the house to the 
south of the O’Reilly’s site.  He stated that now that they have seen the landscaping plan, 
they are fine with that plan, but “Now we hear about delivery at night and that concerns 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 3 of 21



 

 3 

us.”  Hargrave clarified that deliveries occur right after the store closes, around 9:00 to 
10:00 p.m., not the middle of the night. 
 
Taylor had questions regarding address difference which Anderson explained by noting 
that Taylor’s property is in South Haven Township and the O’Reilly’s lot is in the city. 
 
Motion by Wall, second by Heinig to close the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
Paull noted it’s time to consider the question and make a decision if possible.  
 
Heinig stated, “I think they’ve done a good job demonstrating this is their business model. 
I don’t see, with the location, that this parking request will create any problems.”  

 
Motion by Heinig, second by Smith to approve the special use permit for parking request. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
7. Other Business – Site Plan Review 

 
a) Webb Architects, representing O’Reilly Auto Parts of Springfield, MO, has 

submitted plans for a new store at 369 Blue Star Highway. Review and approval of 
commercial plans by the planning commission is required under Zoning Ordinance 
Section 1401-1. 
 
Anderson commented that she talked to the city engineer who got the revised plans, they 
have made a lot of improvements; the engineer has no doubt the final plans will comply 
with all city codes. All of the city engineer’s concerns have been addressed or will be 
shortly. Regarding the traffic study, O’Reilly’s say they do not need a traffic study, and 
when considering the ordinance standards, they will not exceed the number of vehicle 
trips necessary to warrant a traffic study. 
 
Anderson referred to the landscaping plan displayed on an easel; she colored in the 
landscaping so members can see how it actually looks. They are not really meeting the 
standard for the side that abuts the property of the neighbor that was here earlier. The 
applicant had reasons for not landscaping that, and you can decide how you feel about 
that. 
 
The signage is not included on this plan, but that will be taken out under separate permits 
and will have to follow the requirements of the overlay zone.  
 
Paull asked where the Knox box will be for the fire department. He does not see that on 
the revisions. The company representative stated that they will contact the fire marshal to 
find an agreeable location for the box. Anderson commented that O’Reilly’s needs to let 
the building department know the location; that will be needed before an occupancy 
certificate is issued. 
 
Regarding the traffic study there were no questions from the board. 
 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 4 of 21



January 15, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 
 

 4 

Landscaping, particularly the south boundary between the people who were just here and 
the business:  
 
Hargrave: Some existing trees will remain on the site. The demolition sheet says existing 
trees are to be removed or pruned at property lines. Wall says it is just being a good 
neighbor to leave at least every other one if the existing pine trees. Smith noted there is 
space between them; it is not like they form a solid wall. There is also to be a six (6) foot 
tall fence along the south property line; the trees are on the applicant’s property. Wall 
requested some kind of verbiage or agreement to either leave the pine trees or replace 
them needs to be included in the final drawings.  
 
Anderson reminded that the board may request a revised landscape plan and make that 
a condition of the approval. 
 
Heinig asked about the monitor well noted on the plan. Need to find out who owns it, what 
they are monitoring and get a pre- and post-construction reading.  
 
Smith wondered about at what elevation the building will sit and the elevations of the site. 
Hargrave said the building will sit up at the 60-something level sloping down to the road. 
There will be a flattened area where the building is. “That is quite a sloped site,” Hargrave 
noted.  
 
Anderson excused herself to retrieve a large plan from her office. Heinig noted that on the 
grading plan it is listed as an abandoned well, so it shouldn’t be an issue. 
 
Anderson added that she and the city engineer looked at the photometric for the lighting 
fixtures and it appears the exterior lighting will be in compliance with code requirements. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Wall to approve the site plan with the following conditions: 
 

 Knox box location be determined and reported to the building inspector. 
 Revised landscaping plan to indicate buffering shall be submitted to the zoning 

administrator. 
 Sign off by city engineer on any remaining issues prior to any permit issuance. 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

b) Annual Report to City Council 
 
Anderson explained that the Michigan Planning Enabling act requires the Planning 
Commission to make an annual report to the City Council stating all activities and decisions 
made in the prior year. Anderson noted that the format she has put the report in helps her 
look up things later. Anderson also makes note of the Zoning Board of Appeals actions. No 
action is needed, per Anderson, as this is just informational for City Council. 
 

c) Dog Ordinance memo 
 
Anderson stated that the board does not have to do anything with this and explained that 
staff was asked to review the ordinance due to an incident with a dog. A subcommittee met 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 5 of 21



 

 5 

with the deputy police chief to go over what happened and to review the city code. It was 
decided by the subcommittee that the ordinance is adequate and everything was taken care 
of well. The subcommittee did have recommendations regarding redundancies or unclear 
language. Anderson took the subcommittee’s recommendations to the City Manager, who 
consulted the City Attorney. The City Attorney agreed with the recommendations of the 
subcommittee and has drafted amendments to the actual ordinance. The City Attorney not 
only approved the fine increase suggested by the subcommittee, he added the increase to 
the fine across the board, doubling fees all the way.  
 
Anderson clarified that this is just another information item. City Council will be looking at the 
revised ordinance on Monday night and Anderson will be there to help answer questions. 
 
Paull noted the pressure was to try to include reference to breed specific rules and 
regulations. “All of the research out there regarding breed specific laws indicates they don’t 
work anyway.” Paull believes a fair way to deal with dog problems are to deal with behavior 
rather than breed. It was noted that the ordinance does take into account the owner’s 
actions. 

 
8. Commissioner Comments 
 

Paull: This is the first opportunity I’ve had to wish everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
9. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Heinig, second by Wall to adjourn at 7:40 p. m.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 6 of 21



 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

January 15, 2015 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

JWILCO 
Special Use Request 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information: Joe Wiltgen, representing JWILCO, is requesting a special use 
permit to construct a planned shopping center on his property at 330 Blue Star Highway. This 
permit is required because the proposed commercial center will have more than two (2) 
individual units. The applicant intends to demolish the building currently on the site and rebuild. 
This special use hearing is authorized in zoning section 802-1. 
 
Recommendation: Any special use approval of this project will need to be contingent on site 
plan approval by all city departments and the approval of side and rear variances by the zoning 
board of appeals. Given the incompleteness of the site plan, it is difficult to recommend approval 
of the special use at this time. The corrections required to the site plan could limit the allowable 
size of the building making the special use unnecessary.  
 
 
Support Material:  
 
Application 
Site plan 
Exterior elevations 
Aerial photo 
Case Summary 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 7 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 10 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 8 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 11 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Agenda Page 9 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 12 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 10 of 21



AGENDA ITEM #6  
JOE WILTGEN (JWILCO) SPECIAL USE APPLICATION 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Case Number ........................ 2015-0002 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 3-5-2015 
 
Applicant ............................... Joe Wiltgen (JWILCO) 
 
Request ................................ A special use permit to construct a planned shopping center (i.e., 

more than 2 units) 
 
Location ................................ 330 Blue Star Highway. 
 
Parcel Number……………......80-53-552-016-01 
 
Size ....................................... .5 acres (20,137 square feet +/-) 
 
Street Frontage ..................... 135 feet 
 
Current Zoning ...................... B-2 General Commercial  
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No change  
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: B-2 General Commercial  
 South: B-2 General Commercial 
 East: B-4 Highway Commercial (other side of Blue Star Hwy) 
 West: R1-B Residential 
 
Current Land Use .................. Commercial car wash 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Countryside Motors  
 South: Laundomat 
 East: Future site of O’Reilly Auto Parts 
 West: Single family residential 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Commercial 
 
 
CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The subject property is in an area of commercial uses except to the west which is a single family 
home neighborhood. The character of the area is consistant with the current zoning and future 
land use classification.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
Joe Wiltgen is requesting a special use permit and site plan approval to construct a planned 
shopping center on his property at 330 Blue Star Highway. This permit is required because 
the proposed commercial center will have three (3) units. The applicant intends to demolish 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 13 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 11 of 21



the building currently on the site and rebuild. This special use hearing is authorized in zoning 
section 802-1. The parcel number for the project is 80-53-552-016-01. 
 
PUBLIC RESPONSE 
NA 
 
EVALUATION 
The following relevant provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement 
representing the status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 
ARTICLE XV (SECTION 1502, BASIS OF DETERMINATION): 
 
1. General standards - the Planning Commission shall review the particular circumstances 

of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   

 
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

 
There is no reason to expect that the new commercial building will not be maintained 
and designed in a manner compatible with the surrounding neighborhood provided that 
adequate landscaping/screening is in place to protect the adjacent residential properties. 
 
B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 

area.   
 
The proposed use will have little or no impact on the neighborhood as the subject 
property has for many years housed a commercial use. There is no expectation that the 
proposed use will change the area character other than improving the appearance 
through landscaping and allowable signage. 
 
C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 

values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 
be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 
No hazardous impacts are anticipated as the proposed use will be office/retail in nature.  
Any exterior lighting will need to be dark sky compliant. 
 
D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 

excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

 
No additional demands on public services are expected. 
 
E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 
 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 14 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 12 of 21



The 2011 Master Plan includes the following in the Policy Statement section: “The City and 
South Haven Township should support redevelopment of properties fronting on Blue Star 
Highway, M-43 and Phoenix Street as retail, service and other commercial uses. Buffers 
between commercial/industrial uses and the existing single family residences should be 
encouraged as expansion and redevelopment occurs”. 
 
This proposed use is compatible with the master plan. 

 
 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
 

The site plan review is included in the agenda packet. At this time, the plan application is 
incomplete. 

 
G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 

requirements for that use. 
 

The project shall meet all applicable laws and regulations prior to final permitting. 
 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 

 
This application will require variances to build as requested. The applicant has chosen to seek 
the special use permit prior to the variance application knowing that any approval will be 
contingent on obtaining the necessary variances. 
 
SECTION 1510.27.  PLANNED SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT 
 

1. Locational Requirements - Planned shopping developments are permitted in the B-2 
and B-4 Major Thoroughfare Business District. Ingress and egress shall be only from a 
major thoroughfare. 
  
The property will be accessed from Blue Star Highway. 

 
2. Site Requirements - Shall be at least 20,000 square feet in size. 

 
Property is 20,137 square feet in size. 

 
3. Buffering Requirements - A landscaped area conforming to the requirements of 

Section 1709 shall be provided and maintained between the parking lot and the property 
line, with a width of ten (10) feet on the front and rear property lines, and five (5) feet on 
the side property lines. If the lot is a corner lot, a landscaped area of ten (10) feet shall 
be provided and maintained along any property line which fronts a public street. 

 
This property is within the Corridor Overlay Zone and will need to comply with all 
requirements of that section, including landscaping. 

 
4. Performance Standards 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 15 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 13 of 21



a. Due to the nature of Planning Shopping Developments, traffic flows may be 
increased. The Planned Shopping Development must provide adequate safety 
measures in traffic flow design through limited ingress and egress points to the 
property and parking areas. Said traffic flow increase must not present a 
dangerous impediment to existing thoroughfares or streets. 

b. The maximum widths of all driveways at the public sidewalk crossing or road 
shall be no more than thirty-six (36) feet. All Planned Shopping Developments 
must provide an unobstructed drive of a minimum of twenty-four (24) feet in 
width. Said drive must be located not further than 35 feet from the wall line, 
running the entire perimeter of said buildings. Said drive must be posted with 
markings on the pavement or signs that state "No Parking - Fire Lane." 

c. Minimum angle or driveway intersection with the roadway from the curb line to 
the lot line shall be no less than sixty (60) degrees. 

d. The minimum distance between roadway curb cuts or driveways shall be no less 
than forty (40) feet on any property or adjacent properties owned in common by 
an individual. 

e. The minimum setback from any road or street right-of-way to a building within a 
Planned Shopping Development shall be thirty-five (35) feet. 

 
Items A through E will be reviewed by the city engineer and the County Road 
Commission. The site plan does not, however, show the fire lane extending 
around the entire building as required in the zoning ordinance. 

 
f. If a Planned Shopping Development is adjacent to another major traffic use (i.e., 

Department Store, Grocery Store, another Planned Shopping Development), 
every attempt must be made to create an access from the Planned Shopping 
Development to the other major traffic use without using public right-of-way (i.e., 
an internal drive between the two uses). 
 
N/A 

 
g. All uses within the Planned Shopping Development must be uses that would be 

allowed in the B-2 district. Any change of use within the Planned Shopping 
Development must apply for a certificate of zoning compliance from the Zoning 
Administrator before business commences. 

 
It is planned that the businesses in the center will be office or retail. Any change 
in this plan will need to be approved by the zoning administrator or the planning 
commission, depending on the proposed use. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has significant concerns with the approval of the special use request at this time. The 
number of elements that need to be added or corrected on the site plan could substantially alter 
the size of the propsed building. If these changes reduce the number of units to less than three 
(3), a special use permit will not be required, only site plan approval. The planning commission 
needs to review the case summary, visit the site and determine if this application for a special 
use permit meets the intent of the city and, if it does, include any conditions they feel necessary. 
One condition should be the obtaining of the necessary variances and site plan approval by all 
city departments. 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 16 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 14 of 21



Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #7 

JWILCO 
Site Plan Review 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information: Joe Wiltgen, representing JWILCO, is requesting site plan approval 
to construct a planned shopping center on his property at 330 Blue Star Highway. This project 
involves the demolition of the existing building and the construction of a new 4-unit planned 
commercial center. 
 
Recommendation: The site plan received is missing several items as listed in the attached 
zoning administrator review. The plan has been forwarded to the city engineer for his comments 
which will be sent to planning commission members under a separate email prior to the 
meeting. The plan has not been forwarded to other city departments pending comments from 
the city engineer. Initial discussions with the engineer indicate that there may need to be 
changes to the parking area and some modification to the plan to accommodate water runoff. 
 
Staff recommends tabling any site plan approval until at least the concerns of the zoning 
administrator and other city staff have been addressed. 
 
 
Support Material:  
 
Application 
Site plan 
Exterior elevations 
Zoning Review 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 17 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 15 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 18 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 16 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 19 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 17 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 20 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 18 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 21 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 19 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 22 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 20 of 21



 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda

Page 23 of 23

 
 

March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Agenda Page 21 of 21


	03-05-2015 PC Agenda pg
	01-15-2015 Planning Minutes
	#6. Special Use Permit Request 
	#7. Site Plan Review 330 Blue Star Hwy packet
	Staff Report
	Agenda Item #7

	330  Blue Star Hwy - Bldg-Zoning Permit App 02-10-2015
	Aerial with property lines
	Exterior elevations
	330 Blue Star Hwy zoning Review




